1: 31: 24 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 18, 2013
1:31 p.m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 1:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Al an Aust erman, Co-Chair
Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Mar k Neurman, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

Li ndsey Hol nes

Scott Kawasaki, Alternate

Cat hy Munoz
St eve Thonpson
Tamm e W1 son

David Guttenberg

Representative Shelly Hughes, Sponsor ; Dani el Ceor ge,
Staff, Representative Bill Stolt ze; Shelly Wi ght,
Director, Sout heast Conference ARDOR; Lorene Pal ner,
Director, Division of Econom c Devel opnment, Departnent of
Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent; Nicole G ewe,
ARDCR  Program  Coordi nat or, Depart ment of Commer ce,

Communi ty and Economi ¢ Devel opnent.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jason Hoke, ARDOR, Copper Valley Devel opnent Corporation;
Carl Berger, Executive Director, Lower Kuskokwi m Econom c
Devel opnment  Counci | ; Bryant Hanmond, Director, Beri ng
Strait Devel opnent Counci | ; Andy Var ner, Executive

Di rector,

House Fi nance Committee 1

Sout hwest Al aska Muni ci pal

Conf er ence.

03/18/13 1:31 P. M



SUMVARY
HB 71 AK REG ONAL ECONOM C ASSI STANCE PROGRAM

CSHB 71(FIN) was REPORTED out of conmmttee with a
"do pass" recomrendation and with one new fisca
impact note from the Departnent of Comerce,
Communi ty and Econom c Devel opnent.

#hb71
HOUSE BILL NO. 71

"An Act extending the termination date of the Al aska
regi onal economi c assistance progranm and providing
for an effective date.”

1: 31: 52 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze discussed another bill.

1: 32: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SHELLY HUGHES, SPONSOR, discussed the ARDORS
| egislation. The bill would extend the program for an
additional three years. She shared that there were 12
ardors in Alaska with the purpose of providing |ocal input
and she stressed that the program was fornmed 25 years
earlier. She comunicated that the program had been a
lifeline for sone of the state's villages. She discussed
the annual cost per ARDOR She noted there were different
acconplishnents across the state. She stated that an audit
had not been conducted during the programs lifetinme. She
pointed to an ARDORS Annual Report (copy on file). She
expl ai ned that Anchorage had worked with their ARDOR to
reach out on an international |evel. She shared that the
Anchorage ARDOR had recently hosted a supplier conference
related to the Kodi ak based aerospace program She stressed
that the ARDORS had a positive inpact on Al aska's econom c
devel opnent .

Representative Costello MOWED to ADOPT the proposed
commttee substitute for HB 71, Wrk Draft 28-LS0288\N
(Martin, 3/18/13).

Co-Chair Stoltze OBIJECTED for di scussion

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



DANI EL  CGEORGE, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE  BILL  STOLTZE,
explained the CS. He read the summary of changes. The title
was changed to read, "An Act extending the term nation date
of the Alaska regional economc assistance progranm and
providing for an effective date.”" Oher changes included
the requirenent of an annual report to be submtted to the
| egislature. The bill also spelled out requirenents in the
report, and outlined assistance provided by departnents for
federal funding, sponsorships and sources, neeting dates,
| ocations, agenda description. He explained that much of
the information was currently available, but the bill
spel l ed out how the itens should be described. He concl uded
that there were sone technical changes, including section
nunberi ng.

1: 39: 20 PM

Representative Costello shared that there had been
guestions in a subconmmttee related to the value of the
ARDCORS program The subconmittee felt there was a need to
keep the legislature nore informed on the program and a
devel opment plan had been added.

Representative Hol nes expressed support for the conmttee
substitute. She assunmed the intent of the CS was that the
annual report should not be expensive, and the inportance
was the conmunication  of the information to the
| egi sl ature.

Co-Chair Stoltze noted that there were testifiers that
could express that the ARDORS <could ©provide nore
information, and could benefit those who were focused on
t he public purpose

Representative Holnes believed it was the intent of the CS
to save Al aska noney.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked for an explanation of the
rel ati onship between the ARDOR and the State of Al aska.
Representative Hughes deferred the question to a division
director. She explained that it was a grant program and
the Depart nent of Conmer ce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent (DCCED) adm ni stered the grant. She pointed out
that there was comunication with the program nmanager, and
stressed the inportance of comunication between the
regi ons.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTION, Work Draft 28-LS0288\ N was ADOPTED

Representative Edgnon spoke in support of the |egislation

He asked for nore information regarding the three year
aut hori zation. Representative Hughes replied that after
looking at the program it had been unclear what
acconplishnents sone of the state's ARDORS had been naking.
She discussed that there had not been an audit in the 25
year history of the program an audit would take 2 to 3
years; as a result she had suggested the three year tine
frame instead of five years.

Representative Hughes noted that the audit would sunset
prior to the tinme period.

1:46: 09 PM

JASON HOKE, ARDOR, COPPER VALLEY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATI ON
(via teleconference), shared the responsibilities of
ARDORS, including networking with other ARDORS throughout
the state. He discussed the inportance of conmmunication
between the ARDORS. He pointed to a food distribution
network between different regions of the state. He
di scussed ADA regi onal ener gy pl ans, agriculture
devel opnment had been working with None, and devel oping
environmental agriculture wunits for food sustainability
t hroughout the state. He nentioned a cardboard waste pl ant
for the cardboard waste disposed of in Mit-Su. He stated
t hat they were the only ones conducting economc
devel opment in Copper Valley. The program was funded wth
$62, 000, and about one-third of the funds were used on rent
and other. He understood there had been concerns that the
private funds were | ow com ng into the program

1:51: 36 PM

CARL BERGER, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, LONER KUSKOKW M ECONOM C
DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL (via teleconference), testified in
support of HB 71 had been in the position for over 21
years. He shared that the region was primarily dependent on
the fishing industry. The comercial fishery ebbed and
flowed, and remarked that comunity had worked hard to
i nprove the salnmon cache to take better care of harvested
fish to receive a higher price. He felt that the ARDORS
hel ped in pronmoting tourismin the area.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



1: 55: 01 PM

M. Berger continued that his l|ocal ARDOR had provided
$2,000 to $4,000 to several individuals each year, and that
smal | anmount of noney was able to serve the community. He
stressed that it was a grassroots operation, and pointed
out that the ARDOR was able to provide access to a
government organization. He stressed that the operating
costs were increasing annually.

Co-Chair Stoltze renmarked that the Special Educati on
Service Agency (SESA) had discussed funding for their
program and the legislature was still attenpting to pass a
bill for SESA.

M. Berger concluded his remarks.

Representative Gara thanked M. Berger for his explanation
of the program and he expressed the support for the
program

Vice-Chair Neunan asked about grants in the anount of
$2,000 to $4,000 per year. He pointed to the ARDORS byl aws
of up to $10,000 per year, and $5,000 wi thout revision. He
asked if grants to individuals were one-tine grants. M.
Berger replied that the grants were provided using nobney
from ot her organizations in the community. He stressed that
the awarded nobney was not state noney. He explained that
approximately 12 people had been served over the course of
three years. He remarked that it was a small effort in his
regi on.

1: 59: 21 PM

BRYANT HAMMOND, DI RECTOR, BERI NG STRAI' T DEVELOPMENT COUNCI L
(via teleconference), testified in support of t he
| egislation. He shared that the program had a staff of six
people and a board of seven people. He stated that the
board represented regional business, sub regions of the
regional tribes, and higher education. The staff assisted
in research and planning specifically related to energy;
and served as a |iaison between the community, tribes, and
outside experts. The staff also provided grant witing
support to the tribes, to assist the comunities in
devel oping their capacity to plan and gain funding for
priority projects. The staff provided support for e-

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



commerce marketing to gain a wider market for the region's
artist. He stated that the ARDOR funds hel ped to support a
single position that traveled to each comunity in the
region to facilitate econonmc developnment planning. He
explained that the plans helped to develop comunity
priorities, in order to determne five-year devel opnent
strategi es. He stressed that the ARDOR funding was
essential, but provided val uabl e coordi nated assi stance.

Representati ve Kawasaki pointed to the revenue portfolios
of the ARDORs under the annual plan. He noticed that Bering
Strait's revenue portfolio had 10 percent from the state,
11 percent from the federal governnent, and 79 percent from
ot her funds. He wondered what the "other funds" i ncluded.
M. Hanmmond replied that "other funds" referred to all
tribal conpact funds.

Co-Chair Stoltze surmsed that the "other funds" sounded
li ke federal funds.

ANDY VARNER, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, SOUTHWEST ALASKA MUNI Cl PAL
CONFERENCE (via teleconference), shared that the Southwest
ARDCOR was one of the |ongest serving ARDORs, and renarked
that one of the things that the program had done well was
that it acted as a good sounding board and central area for
a diverse region.

M . Varner stated that the ARDOR grant represent ed
approximately 25 percent the funding portfolio. The office
had two full-tine staff, and shared that if the ARDOR npbney
went away the office would need to cut one staff. He
understood the inportance of elimnating duplicate state
services, but remarked that the Minicipal Conference worked
to ensure that certain state operations functioned well. He
enphasi zed the inportance of working together.

2:12:18 PM

Representative WIson asked how nuch the state and private
funds were. M. Varner answered that the office received
$62, 000 per year in state funds and approxi mately $100, 000
in private funds.

SHELLY WRI GHT, DI RECTOR, SOUTHEAST CONFERENCE ARDOR, st ated
that all ARDORS throughout the state had different m ssions
to focus on the diverse needs in the state. She shared that
the effort was to help with a collaborated approach for

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



Sout heast comunities. The areas becanme a network of supply
and services; and she pointed to tinber recovery, and a
threshold analysis related to a tinber industry in
Sout heast. She stressed that the office did not have the
bureaucracy to weed through the different projects, but
when the projects were conpleted the staff would be
di sm ssed. She noted that the program was a nenbership
or gani zat i on.

2:17:08 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered iif the Southeast Conference
engaged in political activities. M. Wight responded in
t he negati ve.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if she considered a redistricting
lawsuit a political activity or joining a political party.
Ms. Wight did not know, and asked if the Southeast
Conf erence had done that.

Co-Chair Stoltze stressed that he had a reason to ask the
guestion, and restated his question. M. Wight replied
that she did not know t he answer.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered if she did not know the answer
because of noral anmbiguity or legal anbiguity. M. Wight
responded that she was not famliar with that particular
i nci dent.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered if endorsing a candidate would be
a political activity. V5. Wi ght replied in the
affirmative.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if hosting a political party's
conference be considered political activity. M. Wight
replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Stoltze did not believe that she had the history
to answer. He stated that he was nerely curious.

Representati ve Edgnon wondered if the five cycle proposa
woul d have any inpact on the program M. Wight replied in
t he negative. She noted that having the five year stability
was good, but it would not be a deterrent for the program
if it sunset in three years.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



Representative Munoz acknowl edged the terrific work of the
Sout heast Conference. She discussed that the Southeast
Conference had been established to start the ferry system

2:20: 18 PM

Representative Gara asked about the three and five year
extension under the bill. He wondered if the change woul d
have a negative inpact on the ability to hire staff or
enter into contracts. Ms. Wight replied in the negative.
She stated that staff was considered on a year-to-year
basi s.

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if Departnment of Commerce, Community
and Econom c Devel opnent (DCCED) whether it had a position
on the bill.

LORENE PALMER, DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT,
DEPARTMENT OF COWMERCE, COVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT,
replied that the departnent was available for questions.
She pointed to the significant comments provided by ARDORS.
She believed the original prem se of the program was still
val i d.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if the admi nistration supported the
program M. Palner replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Stoltze guessed that the adm nistration wanted the
programto conti nue.

Representative W/Ison asked how it was determ ned whether
the noney was being used in the best interest of the
program Ms. Pal ner understood that there were expectations
in the application process that determined the eligibility
for the grants. She did not believe the departnment had
taken a role in determning the value of the work done in
the different areas the program exi sted.

2:25:21 PM

Nl COLE GREVE, ARDOR PROGRAM COCRDI NATOR, DEPARTMENT OF
COWERCE, COWUNITY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, noted that
there was a board of directors for the ARDORS by design.
She noted that there were three <core deliverables
associated with the grant: 1) An econom c devel opnent plan,

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



that was updated every two years and was submitted to
DCCED;, 2) The ARDOR was to execute econom c devel opnent
activities that were in line with the plan; and 3) The
ARDCR have a board of directors that reflected the econom c
diversity and | eadership of that region, and convened on a
regul ar basi s.

Representative WIlson wondered if the review process
determined a reissuing for a period of tinme. M. Palner
replied that there were requirenents that needed to be
fulfilled, if the requirenents were not fulfilled the
ARDCRS were no |longer eligible for the grant.

Co-Chair Austerman noted that the annual report did not
tell him anything other than the nunbers. He explained that
the report was vague. He did not believe there was any way
to tell if there was a value to the program based on the
report. He pointed to the CS that laid out some structure
that would allow the departnment to do what it should have
been doing all along. He asked about the departnent's view
of the CS. Ms. Palner replied the report could go into nore
depth and detail. She understood there was room for
i mprovenent, and felt the CS would help in detailing nore
reporting requirements.

2:29:58 PM

Co-Chair Austerman pointed to funding listed in the annua
report. He asked what made up the remainder of funds
outside of state funds. Ms. Grewe asked for verification of
the page nunber (four). Co-Chair Austerman replied in the
affirmative.

Co- Chair Austerman wondered why there was a $252,000 in
funding. Ms. Gewe replied that some of the ARDORs brought
in additional state funds, conpeted for grants from other
state agencies that the departnment was not involved in. She
el aborated that there were various grants from the
| egi sl ature, |ike Southeast Conference grants.

Co-Chair Austerman requested a list of the grants. M.
Grewe agreed to provide that information.

Co-Chair Austerman surmsed that DCCED did not track the

grants. He felt that DCCED needed nore oversight regarding
funding for the ARDORS.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



2:33:16 PM

Represent ati ve Kawasaki wondered how DCCED pl anned to track
the finances of a specific ARDOR, if the grant was added to
the remainder of their funding. Ms. Gewe responded that
DCCED had a budget table in the grant agreement with the
ARDCORS. She stated that the state funding nust be reported
on by the ARDOR, based on its use.

Vi ce-Chair Neunman asked if the department approved of the
grants adm nistered. Ms. Gewe responded that DCCED nust
approve all spending over $5000.

Vice-Chair Neuman referred to page 28 and the pronotion of
the Valdez Port Pronotion. He noted that the strategic
report for the natural gas export. He wondered if DCCED
approved of that funding. M. Gewe replied that the
funding may have been used for staff tine, but was not used
as a sub-contact outside the entity. She remarked that she
did not know the details of the activities.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman wondered if there was a standard policy
for salaries and benefits. M. Gewe replied that there
were no standards, and the revenue was considered
unrestricted. She remarked that each ARDOR was required to
provi de a breakdown of how the $62, 000 was spent each year.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked if the ARDOR board could determ ne
the salary of their director. Ms. Gewe replied in the
affirmati ve.

2:38:52 PM

Representative Edgnon asked whether the creator of the
program had envisioned it to be a state/private
partnership. He thought the audit would |ook at state
activities and private funding nove would nore towards the
board of directors. He asked if the statenment was fair. M.
Pal ner replied in the affirmative, and felt that the audit
would provide nore information regarding the ARDOR
activities across the board.

Representative Edgnon surmsed that nmany of the ARDOR
activities were outside the scope of state oversight. M.
Palmer replied that the purpose of the ARDOR was for
econonm ¢ developnment in different regions. The departnent

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



hoped that the individual ARDOR prograns were able to
| everage the noney to get the nost out of it.

Representative Edgnon asked if the structures of the
organi zati ons and boards were determ ned by the individua
ARDCORS. Ms. Palner replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Austerman wondered if it was the departnent's
responsibility to ensure that the noney was being spent in
the way it was intended. M. Palnmer replied in the
affirmati ve.

2:43: 42 PM

Co-Chair Austerman noted that he could read the reports,
but he did not see the econom c devel opnment that occurred
over the past 25 years. He was not that hopeful unless he
could see it in black and white. He believed the departnent
needed to take on a nore active role in shepherding the
funds. Ms. Palner replied that DCCED was exploring ways to
evaluate and review the plans to allow the ARDOR to
exercise its autononmy while ensuring grant performance
recordi ng.

Co-Chair Austerman supported the ARDORS, but wth no
information it was hard to know what was going on. He
wanted to make sure funds were spent on the right thing.

Representative Thonpson asked if any of the funds in the
ARDORS prograns could be available to board nenbers or
their famlies. M. Gewe answered that if an ARDOR was
using state noney, the ARDOR did not report to the
recipient of the grant. She furthered that it would not be
appropriate under the terns to provide a grant.

Representati ve Thonpson surmsed that the ARDOR did not
need to report a grant recipient to DCCED. M. Gewe
responded had not seen a single ARDOR give out a grant in
the past three years.

2:47:52 PM

Representative Kawasaki referred to AS Title 44. He
referred to concern over grant eligibility requirenents,
specifically concerning matching grant funds with non-state
sources. He wondered if DCCED hel ped grantees to find other
sources outside of state sources. Ms. Gewe replied in the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



affirmati ve. She stated that DCCED provided assistance in
encour agi ng ARDORS to pursue non-state and federal funding.

Representati ve Kawasaki pointed to statute and asked if
there was a specific formula the departnment could show
regarding matching grant funds. Ms. Grewe replied that it
was typically 20 percent match

Representative WIson wondered if DCCED had ever not
renewed an ARDOR grant. V5. Gewe answered in the
affirmati ve. She continued that every few years an award
woul d be reduced for non-conpliance. She added that things
could happen in the mddle of a fiscal year that would free
up funds.

2:50: 50 PM

Representative Gara wondered if DCCED used ARDOR noney for
oversight. Ms. Palner replied that DCCED used ARDOR funds
for adm nistering the program

Representative Gara was concerned about that. He noted that
the funds were already snmall. M. Palmer replied that 6
percent was used for adm nistering the grants.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered if nobney was used from inactive
ARDORS. Ms. Pal mer answered that the noney canme out of the
total allocation and then noney was di spersed to ARDORS.

Co-Chair Austerman asked for verification that the nunber
was 6 percent. Ms. Palner replied in the affirmative.

Representative Gara restated his concern about the noney
bei ng taken from ARDORS fromthe departnent.

Representative WIson wondered if the 6 percent was used
for the position's total wages, or if it was an additiona
6 percent. Me. Pal mrer answered that the 6 percent
represented what was al |l ocated to DCCED.

Representative Wl son asked for verification that the funds
were used was for a person. M. Palner responded in the
affirmati ve.

2:54: 05 PM

Representati ve Edgnon di scussed his perception of the ARDOR
program as a state and private partnership. He discussed

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



| everagi ng state funds in planning, conferences, research,
and other services. He noted that some of the conversation
may seem to indicate otherw se. He asked about the
department's perception of the program He wondered how
effective the program is. M. Palnmer answered that every
ARDOR is different, with a different purpose and region.
She pointed to inherent challenges such as Ilack of
infrastructure and other that neant performance would be
different across the state. She discussed support from
DCCED for leading, directing, guiding and overseeing on
their behalf. She believed the program had a Ilot of
strengths, but also needed inprovenents. She discussed the
need to comuni cate the inportance of the individual ARDORS
to the individual regions across the state.

Representative Gara queried the reason for the 6 percent
cut to the ARDORS from DCCED. Co-Chair Stoltze stated that
the discussion would occur during the budget process the
foll ow ng year.

Representative Costello MOWED to ADOPT a conceptual
amendnent :

Page 2, line 27:
Delete "t he board."
Insert: "the board; and

(c) a report on any wrk done on statew de
econom ¢ devel opnent projects.”

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for discussion.

2:59:58 PM
AT EASE

3:04:53 PM
RECONVENED

Representative Costello WTHDREW the conceptual anendnent.
She MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent 1:

Page 1, line 7

Insert a after "Shall™
conpile a report on work on statew de econom c
devel opnment projects and

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



Renunber the follow ng sections of the bill.

Co-Chair Stoltze explained that the subject was originally
in the wong section of the bill, so it would be in a new
section.

Representative Gara wondered why the report should not
i ncl ude regional econom c devel opnent projects. He wondered
if they were already doing that. Co-Chair Austerman
believed so, but will reread the bill.

Co-Chair Stoltze surmsed that the ARDORS were responsive,
and felt that DCCED shoul d provide nore information.

Representative Edgnon noted that ARDORS are regional
organi zations with regi onal boards of directors.

Co-Chair Austerman pointed to Al aska Forward. He wondered
whet her ARDORS were still involved with Al aska Forward.

3:07:13 PM

Representative Gara MOVED to AMEND Anendnent 1 to insert
"and regional” followng the word "statew de":

Page 1, line 7

Insert a after "Shall™
conpile a report on wrk on statewide and
regi onal econom c devel opnent projects and

Renunber the follow ng sections of the bill.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, the anendnent to Anendnent 1 was
ADOPTED.

Representative Costello spoke to Anendnent 1. She remarked
that the inportance of econonm c devel opnent was i nportant
to the legislature. She felt that comrunication with the
regions would further |egislative objectives.

Amendnent 1 as anmended was ADOPTED.
Representative Costello spoke to the fiscal note. She

stated that there would be a fiscal inpact of $859,500 to
DCCED for FY 14, FY 15, and FY 16.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



Representative Gara noved to anend the fiscal note. He felt
that DCCED should not have a full-tine enployee to "watch”
what the ARDORS were doing. He felt that $20,000 should be
noved to the grants and benefits position.

3:11: 01 PM
AT EASE

3:11: 57 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if there were other questions on the
fiscal note.

Representative Costello MOVED to REPORT CSHB 71(FIN) out of
conmmttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

CSHB 71(FIN) was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with one new fiscal inpact note fromthe
Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity and Econom c Devel opnent.

Co-Chair Stoltze made renmarks. He discussed the schedul e
for the follow ng day.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
3:15: 35 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:15 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/18/13 1:31 P. M



